
TOWN OF HAMDEN

PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION
MEETING

JANUARY 10, 2012
7:00 PM

PARKS & RECREATION CONFERENCE ROOM
HAMDEN GOVERNMENT CENTER

2750 DIXWELL AVENUE
HAMDEN

Commissioners in Attendance:  Tad Watson, Chairman
                                                    Rich Leonardo, Vice Chair
                                                    Sarah Merrill
                                                    Michael McGarry
                                                    Arnie Mann

          Others in Attendance:   Mimsie Coleman, Director of Arts, Recreation and Culture
                                                  Peggy Craft, Commission Clerk
                                                  Craig Cesare, Director of Public Works
                                                  Curt Balzano Leng, Chief Administrative Officer

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Watson called the meeting to order at 5:32 PM.

ATTENDANCE

Attendance was taken as noted above.

APPROVAL OF THE DECEMBER 13, 2011 MINUTES

There were no additions, deletions or corrections to the Minutes of the December 13, 2011 meeting, 
and Chairman Watson called for a motion to approve.  Commissioner Leonardo motioned to 
approve the December 13, 2011 Minutes.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner McGarry 
and passed unanimously.

Chairman Watson invited Director Cesare to address the Commission.

Mr. Cesare discussed the change to the P&R Department placing parks under Public Works and 
recreation programs under Arts, Recreation and Culture.  He said he and Director Coleman have a very 
good working relationship. 

Mr. Cesare distributed a report regarding what the Public Works Department does.  He said this report 
is given to the Legislative Council each month.



P&R Commission Meeting
January 10, 2012
Page 2

Next, Mr. Cesare discussed the report which included several pictures.  He explained the work being 
done on the Farmington Canal and the “catch-up” work being done during the winter months on the 
parks. He said that Bassett Park along with Larry's Playground is the largest park and the centerpiece of 
the Town parks.  He explained the work that has been done there including taking down the old chain 
link fence along Waite Street.  They have been able to use wooden fencing that has been salvaged from 
other projects.  This has greatly improved the appearance of the fence.  He added that there was no cost 
to the Town since the work was done in-house by Public Works Maintainers. 

Mr. Mann asked about safety at the basketball court.  Mr. Cesare said they have added a 12 foot section 
of fence.  He said this will be more attractive and easier to maintain.

Next, Mr. Cesare said Bassett Field One has been re-layed according to modern day specifications.  Mr. 
Mann asked about lips on the ball fields.  Mr. Cesare said the crews have cut the lips out of the fields.
Field Four at Bassett has become a regulation Little League field.  He added that both these fields are 
now irrigated.  He said they used Able Irrigation to do this work at a cost of less than $6,000 to the 
Town.  Mr. Cesare said that during the park's busy time he will designate a maintainer to work on 
Bassett and Larry's Playground.

Mr. Leonardo asked if fertilizer will be used on the fields.  Mr. Cesare said they will use an organic 
fertilizer.

Next, Mr. Cesare discussed parking lot changes and drainage at Bassett Park and Larry's Playground. 
He said he will be looking into LoCIP funding for this work.  He said there are also plans to work on 
the parking lot at the Dog Park.  He discussed a crosswalk at the driveway apron at the Dog Park.  This 
will include a crosswalk with stripping and possible removable speed bumps.  He also said there is 
currently funding in the Capital Budget for sidewalks on Waite Street. 

Mr. McGarry discussed parking at Morretti Field and any possible improvements that may be planned. 
There was a brief discussion regarding this.  Mr. Cesare noted that Morretti Field is in the a wetlands 
area.  

Ms, Coleman said she received a call from State Senator Joe Crisco indicating that he will be putting 
through  a request for funding.  She met with Frank Cooper to discuss what the pressing needs of the 
department were.  She provided Mr. Crisco with three items.  She has heard from a representative of 
OPM requesting more details.  She said if anyone has suggestions to e-mail her.

Mr. Mann asked if there is a handicap soccer program.  Mr. McGarry said there are kids in the program 
with special needs, but as far as he knows there has never been a request for a handicap child to 
participate in the program.  He said he will discuss it with the soccer association board. 

Mr. Cesare said the department is replacing wood chips at all the playgrounds in Town.  He said they 
will completely remove the old wood chips and replace them with new chips.  He said this has gone out 
to bid and they have secured the lowest bidder.  Mr. Leng said many of the parks have not had the 
wood chips replaced in years.



P&R Commission Meeting
January 10, 2012
Page 3

Mr. Watson asked about fixing the water fountain at DeNicola Park.  Mr. Cesare said they are working 
on this.

Mr. Cesare said solar compactors have been placed at various location throughout Town.  Mr. Leng said 
this was done through an Energy Efficiency Grant.

Next, Mr. Cesare said a full time Maintainer has been assigned to Brooksvale Park.  He said the 
Maintainer works for the Parks Department and reports to Park Ranger Vinnie Lavorgna who works for 
the Arts, Recreation and Culture Department.  Mr. Cesare said this is an example of the cooperation and 
camaraderie between the two groups.  Mr. Leng said we could all sing Kumbaya now.

Mr. Cesare said the department is working with the Veterans Commission.  They plan to take down the 
Christmas Tree that is currently at Freedom Park and plant a permanent tree to be known as the 
Freedom Tree.  He said there are also plans to bring the Clock Tower back to life.  He said they will 
leave the trees and fence, and re-landscape the area.  

Regarding the Town Center Park, Mr. Cesare said he is looking into grading the area near the access 
road behind the Middle School.  

Mr. Cesare discussed graffiti on the Trail. And the graffiti on the Sherman Avenue underpass.  He  also 
discussed the grafitti on the fields.  He said the crews are working on this.  He also discussed methods 
of removal.  He said he is working with Ted Braza in the Traffic Department on this problem.

Mr. Mann discussed security on the Trail, and the possibility of obtaining an all terrain vehicle to patrol 
this area.  

Mr. Cesare said he plans to have a two man crew working on the Trail during the summer.

Next, Mr. Cesare discussed the Lock Keeper's house.  He said benches have been donated and 
dedicated by families and a garden has also been planted.

The brush from the storms has been cleaned up at Brooksvale.

Friends of Brooksvale are going to start raising money for an animal barn.     

Ms. Coleman said they are trying to determine how many people visit Brooksvale Park during the year.
She said it is estimated to be over 100,000.  

Ms. Coleman said the work that Public Works has done during the last year has been amazing 
considering the weather during the past year.

Mr. McGarry discussed the drainage on the soccer field at Morretti.  He said some of the fields they 
play on are atrocious.   There was a discussion regarding the soccer fields in Town.  Mr. Cesare said he 
plans to create a master plan of priorities regarding when fields need to be cut to accommodate 
scheduled games.



P&R Commission Meeting
January 10, 2012
Page 4

There was a lengthy discussion regarding soccer fields.

Mr. Cesare discussed looking into getting LoCIP funds to erect bleachers at the Town parks.  He said he 
would like to make them safer and more easily maintained.

There was a discussion regarding this WELI field.  It was noted that the contract expires in 2013.
  
Mr. Cesare was asked if the department will be getting summer help.  He said they will in July.

Mr. Mann asked when soccer season runs.  Mr. McGarry said it runs from May to June, and again from 
September to October.

Mr. Leng said regarding the new Charter, some new ordinances need to be created regarding this 
Commission.  He has discussed this with the Town Attorney.  The discussion included how the 
Commission should be set-up.  He said the Commission could be expanded to include more members, 
and it could be specified that the Commission advises both the Parks and Recreation Departments. He 
asked the Commissioners to think about what their duties should be.  He also discussed different 
avenues the Commission could follow. 

Mr. Watson said what the Commission wants is to have the parks back under its jurisdiction.  Mr. Leng 
said that is what is going to happen.  Mr. Leng said Mr. Cesare would act as a liaison between the 
Commission and the Parks Division.

All present felt that Mr. Cesare and Mr. Leng's attendance at this meeting was very productive.

REPORTS

Ms. Coleman said she is working on the budget.  

She said the budget for the current year was decimated; she has already had to transfer money into the 
program account.  She said if any problems arise due to budget problems she will contact the 
Commissioners.  

Ms. Coleman discussed the funding for the summer camps, and explained how funding was done in the 
past.  She said historically the training and the first week of camp was done in one fiscal year which 
ends on June 30th, and the remainder of the camps were done in the new fiscal year beginning on July 
1st.  This method of funding will depend on when school ends in June. 

Ms. Coleman discussed various programs that are revenue producing.  There was a discussion 
regarding programs that are successful, and that require funding to continue.

There was a discussion regarding the involvement of Parks & Recreation Supervisors at the various 
athletic organization meetings.  It was felt that this proved to be very helpful and productive in the past. 
Ms. Coleman will look into this for the future.



P&R Commission Meeting
January 10, 2012
Page 5

There was a discussion regarding when games and/or programs are canceled due to weather.

Mr. Watson discussed the direction the Commission will take when the new ordinance regarding this 
Commission is created.  
 
OLD BUSINESS

Chairman Watson reminded Commissioner McGarry to send his request to be reappointed to the 
Commission to the Mayor.

NEW BUSINESS

Chairman Watson asked the of the Commission to call or e-mail Ms. Coleman if they can't attend a 
meeting. 

ADJOURNMENT

There was no further business to come before the Commission and Chairman Watson called for a 
motion to adjourn. Commissioner Leonardo motioned to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner 
Morrill seconded the motion that passed unanimously.  Chairman Watson adjourned the meeting 
at 6:54 PM.

Submitted by:_______________________________
                      Peggy Craft, Clerk of the Commission


